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BR VERIFIED SHAREHOLDER DERIVATIVE COMPLAINT FOR S
EACH OF FIDUCTARY DUTY. WASTE OF CORPORATE ASSETS,
AND UNJUST ENRICHMENT

Plaintiff George Assad (“Plaintiff”), by his attorneys, submits this Verified
Shareholder Derivative Complaint for Breach of Fiduciary Duty, Waste of Corporate
Assets, and Unjust Enrichment. Plaintiff alleges the following on information and
belief, except as to the allegations specifically pertaining to Plaintiff which are based
on personal knowledge. This complaint is also based on the investigation of
Plaintiff’s counsel, which included, among other things, a review of public filings
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and a review of news
reports, press releases, and other publicly available sources.

I. NATURE AND SUMMARY OF THE ACTION

1. This is a shareholder derivative action brought by Plaintiff on behalf of
nominal defendant Hawaiian Electric Industries, Inc. (“Hawaiian Electric,” “HEIL”
or the “Company”) against certain of its officers and directors for breaches of
fiduciary duties and violations of law. These wrongs resulted in significant damages
to Hawaiian FElectric’s reputation, goodwill, and standing in the business
community, as well as exposing the Company to potential liability for violations of
state and federal law.

2. Hawaiian Electric is the largest supplier of electricity in Hawai‘i,
supplying power to 95% of Hawai‘i’s population through its electric utilities:

Hawaiian Electric Company, Inc. (“HECO” or “Hawaiian Electric Company™),

2.
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Hawaii Electric Light Company, Inc. (“HELCO”), and Maui Electric Company,
Limited (“MECO”).

3. The Individual Defendants (defined below) knew for years that the
areas Hawaiian Electric serviced were at risk of severe weather events, that Hawaiian
Electric’s equipment was not adequately maintained, and that the Company’s safety
protocols and procedures were inadequate. Despite this knowledge of material risks
to the Company, its customers, and the Hawaiian environment, the Individual
Defendants failed to implement policies and practices meant to meaningfully
mitigate these material risks. For example, Hawaiian Electric knew of the August
24, 2018, fire in the Kaua‘ula Valley, a West Maui community uphill from Lahaina
where a community of Native Hawaiians live on ancestral kuleana land that has been
in their families for centuries. The 2018 “wall of fire”” burned 21 houses, 27 cars,
and more than 2,100 acres, causing $4.3 million in damage and displacing dozens of
people. Notwithstanding the horrific damage and terrifying risks exposed by the
2018 fire, Hawaiian Electric failed to take such basic steps as replacing old wooden
power poles surrounded by vegetation and implement appropriate safety procedures
in case of a wildfire, such as de-energizing power lines. The Individual Defendants
also made materially false and misleading statements concerning the Company’s
assessment of these known material risks and the mitigations in place in case of

severe weather events.
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4. Starting on August 4, 2023, the National Weather Service (“NWS”) in
Honolulu warned that Hawai‘i could experience “[s]trong and gusty trade winds”
and “[d]ry weather [and] high fire danger” conditions from August 7, 2023 through
August 9, 2023. On August 6, 2023, Hawai‘i News Now raised a Red Flag Alert
through August 8, 2023, reporting that “strong winds with gusts to 60 mph are

buffeting the state as Hurricane Dora passes south of the island chain, fueling brush

fires and downing trees.” Then, on August 8, 2023, a devastating series of wildfires
broke out in Maui, destroying Lahaina and burning Upcountry areas of Olinda and
Kula. The Individual Defendants’ poor planning and failure to take action to avoid
and mitigate known risks left the Company ill-equipped to handle this foreseeable
disaster. Power lines were kept energized during the severe weather which led to
the power poles becoming overloaded. The combination of high voltage power lines
that were not de-energized properly, carried by old wooden poles, high winds, and
overloaded poles led to the poles snapping and falling into overgrown vegetation,
becoming kindling for fires.

5. Fires swept through areas of Maui, including Lahaina, causing the
massive destruction of thousands of homes and businesses, displacement of
thousands of people, and damage to many treasured irreplaceable historic and
cultural sites. More than one hundred people died, and many people suffered from

severe burns. Initial numbers from the Pacific Disaster Center and Federal
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Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”) estimate the cost of rebuilding after
damage from the wildfires at $5.52 billion. In the wake of the August fires, the non-
congregate shelter program managed by the American Red Cross was housing more
than 8,000 individuals at one point. The December 2023 figures from FEMA, which
provides the bulk of funding for the program, showed 6,297 displaced residents
comprising 2,623 households then forced to live spread across 33 hotels and condos.

6. On August 12, 2023, news outlets began reporting that Hawaiian
Electric lacked the proper policies and procedures to mitigate the impact of the
wildfires. Specifically, they revealed that, at the time the wildfires began, the
Company did not maintain a public power shutoff plan—a plan in which electricity
is intentionally cut off to areas where strong wind events could cause fires to spread.

7. In the wake of the August 12, 2023 news, Hawaiian Electric’s stock fell
more than 55% over the next several days, closing on August 16, 2023 at just $14.57
per share compared to the August 11, 2023’s closing of $32.40 per share. This drop
erased nearly $2 billion in Hawaiian Electric’s market capitalization.

8. Then, on August 16, 2023, the Wall Street Journal (“WSJ’) reported
that Hawailan Electric was meeting with firms that specialize in restructuring
advisory work, exploring options for the various financial and legal challenges that
the Company faces as a consequence from the wildfires. On August 17, 2023, the

WSJ reported that Hawaiian Electric had been aware of the threat posed by wildfires
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for years but waited years to act. Indeed, the WSJ reported that between 2019 and
2022 the Company spent less than $245,000 on wildfire-specific projects on Maui
and did not seek state approval to raise utility rates to pay for broad wildfire safety
improvements until 2022.

0. That same day, on August 17, 2023, Hawaiian Electric’s stock plunged
more than 17.4%, or $2.54 per share, to close at $12.03 per share compared to the
previous trading day’s closing of $14.57 per share, erasing another $278 million in
market capitalization.

10. The revelations about the Company’s lack of fire prevention and
mitigation policies demonstrated that the Individual Defendants’ prior statements
concerning the Company’s: (i) risk mitigations; (i1) adherence to environmental,
social, and governance (“ESG”) principles; (ii1) safety protocols and procedures; and
(iv) maintenance of its equipment were all false.

11. Hawaiian Electric’s wrongdoing did not end with the devastating fires.
News reports state that the Company moved evidence concerning the fires before
the federal Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (the “ATF”) could
investigate their cause. The Company’s actions likely violated national guidelines
collecting and preserving evidence after a wildfire and deprived the ATF of

investigating an original scene. Hawaiian Electric was also aware of California
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utility companies that moved evidence after a fire and later faced massive fines. The
Company now faces potential fines for spoliation of evidence.

12.  As aresult of the Individual Defendants’ wrongdoing, the Company is
subject to numerous actions (identified in further detail below) alleging claims of
wrongful death, negligence, gross negligence, strict liability, premises liability,
trespass, private nuisance, public nuisance, intentional infliction of emotional
distress, inverse condemnation, and ultrahazardous activity. Hawaiian Electric is
also the subject of a federal securities class action lawsuit filed in the U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California on behalf of investors who purchased
Hawaiian Electric’s shares at inflated prices.!

II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

13.  Jurisdiction is conferred by 28 U.S.C. §1332. Complete diversity
among the parties exists and the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive
of interest and costs.

14.  This Court has jurisdiction over each defendant named herein because
each defendant is either a corporation that conducts business in and maintains

operations in this District, or is an individual who has sufficient minimum contacts

! Bhangal v. Hawaiian Electric Industries, Inc., et al., Case No. 3:23-cv-04332 (N.D.
Cal.) (the "Securities Class Action").
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with this District to render the exercise of jurisdiction by the District courts
permissible under traditional notions of fair play and substantial justice.

15. Venue is proper in this Court in accordance with 28 U.S.C. §1391
because: (1) Hawaiian Electric maintains its principal place of business in this
District; (i1) one or more of the defendants either resides in or maintains executive
offices in this District; (ii1) a substantial portion of the transactions and wrongs
complained of herein, including the defendants’ primary participation in the
wrongful acts detailed herein, and aiding and abetting and conspiracy in violation of
fiduciary duties owed to Hawaiian Electric, occurred in this District; and (iv)
defendants have received substantial compensation in this District by doing business
here and engaging in numerous activities that had an effect in this District.

III. THE PARTIES
A. Plaintiff

16. Plaintiff was a shareholder of Hawaiian Electric at the time of the
wrongdoing complained of, has continuously been a shareholder since that time, and
1s a current Hawaiian Electric shareholder. Plaintiff is a citizen of Massachusetts.

B. Nominal Defendant

17. Nominal defendant Hawaiian Electric is a Hawai‘i corporation with
principal executive offices located at 1001 Bishop Street, Suite 2900, Honolulu,
Hawai‘i. Accordingly, Hawaiian Electric is a citizen of Hawai‘i. Hawaiian Electric

is a holding company with subsidiaries principally engaged in electric utility,

_8-
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banking, and non-regulated renewable/sustainable infrastructure businesses
operating in the State of Hawai‘i. Hawaiian Electric is the parent company of
HECO, which is in turn the parent company of Hawaii Electric Light Company, Inc.
and MECO. HECO and its operating utility subsidiaries, Hawaii Electric Light
Company, Inc. and MECO are regulated electric public utilities that serve
communities on the islands of O‘ahu, Hawai‘i, Maui, Lana‘i, and Moloka‘i.
Hawaiian Electric had seventy-five employees as of December 31, 2023, and HECO
and its subsidiaries had 2,654 employees as of the same date.

C. Defendants

18. Defendant Scott W. H. Seu (“Seu”) has been Hawaiian Electric’s
President, Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”), and a director since January 2022.
Defendant Seu was also Hawaiian Electric Company’s President and CEO from
February 2020 to December 2021; Senior Vice President, Public Affairs from
January 2017 to February 2020; Vice President, System Operation from May 2014
to December 2016; Vice President, Energy Resources and Operations from January
2013 to April 2014; Vice President, Energy Resources from August 2010 to
December 2012; Manager, Resource Acquisition Department from March 2009 to
August 2010; Manager, Energy Projects Department from May 2004 to March 2009;
Manager, Customer Installations Department from January 2003 to May 2004;

Manager, Environmental Department from April 1998 to December 2002; Principal
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Environmental Scientist from January 1997 to April 1998; Senior Environmental
Scientist from May 1996 to December 1996; and Environmental Scientist from
August 1993 to May 1996. Defendant Seu was also a Hawaiian Electric Company
director from at least May 2020 to January 2022. Defendant Seu is named as a
defendant in the Securities Class Action that alleges he violated sections 10(b) and
20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company paid defendant Seu the

following compensation:

Total Without
Non-Equity Change in Change in
Stock Incentive Plan | Pension Pension
Year Salary Awards | Compensation Value Value Total
2022 $875,000 | $1,830,874 $869,129 $236,512 $3,575,003 $3,811,515
2021 $506,667 $821,405 $599,588 $1,002,005 $1,927,660 $2,929,665
2020 $419,750 $651,282 $394,587 $999,547 $1,465,619 $2,465,166

Defendant Seu is a citizen of Hawai ‘1.

19. Defendant Thomas B. Fargo (“Fargo”) has been Hawaiian Electric’s
Chairman of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) since May 2020, and a director
since January 2005. Defendant Fargo was also a Hawaiian Electric Company
director from January 2005 to at least March 2016. The Company paid defendant

Fargo the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $230,000 $120,000 $350,000
2021 $227,500 $100,000 $327,500
2020 $185,008 $100,000 $285,008
2019 $111,000 $100,000 $211,000

Defendant Fargo is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

-10 -
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20. Defendant Peggy Y. Fowler (“Fowler”) has been a Hawaiian Electric
director since May 2011. Defendant Fowler was also a Hawaiian Electric Company
director from 2009 to at least March 2016. The Company paid defendant Fowler the

following compensation:

Fiscal Year Fees Paid in Cash Stock Awards Total
2022 $120,000 $120,000 $240,000
2021 $112,500 $100,000 $212,500
2020 $109,500 $100,000 $209,500
2019 $109,726 $100,000 $209,726

Defendant Fowler is a citizen of Oregon.

21. Defendant Celeste A. Connors (“Connors”) has been a Hawaiian
Electric director since May 2019. Defendant Connors has been a member of
Hawaiian Electric’s Audit & Risk Committee since at least February 2024, and was
also a member of that committee from at least March 2020 to at least March 2022.

The Company paid defendant Connors the following compensation:

Fiscal Year Fees Paid in Cash Stock Awards Total
2022 $95,000 $120,000 $215,000
2021 $89,500 $100,000 $189,500
2020 $86,500 $100,000 $186,500
2019 $48,832 $100,000 $148,832

Defendant Connors is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

22.  Defendant William James Scilacci, Jr. (“Scilacci”) has been a Hawaiian
Electric director since May 2019. Defendant Scilacci has been the Chair and a
member of Hawaiian Electric’s Audit & Risk Committee since at least March 2020.

The Company paid defendant Scilacci the following compensation:

-11 -
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Fiscal Year Fees Paid in Cash Stock Awards Total
2022 $111,500 $120,000 $231,500
2021 $98,000 $100,000 $198,000
2020 $96,500 $100,000 $196,500
2019 $57,870 $100,000 $157,870

Defendant Fargo is a citizen of California.

23. Defendant Micah A. Kane (“Kane”) has been a Hawaiian Electric
director since August 2019. Defendant Kane was also a Hawaiian Electric Company
director from at least May 2012 to at least May 2019. Defendant Kane was also a
member of Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit & Risk Committee in March 2019.

The Company paid defendant Kane the following compensation:

Fiscal Year Fees Paid in Cash Stock Awards Total
2022 $102,363 $120,000 $222,363
2021 $91,000 $100,000 $191,000
2020 $89,500 $100,000 $189,500
2019 $39,722 $76,561 $116,283

Defendant Kane is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

24. Defendant Elisia K. Flores (“Flores”) has been a Hawaiian Electric
director since December 2021. Defendant Flores has been a member of Hawaiian
Electric’s Audit & Risk Committee since at least March 2023. The Company paid

defendant Flores the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $112,113 $120,000 $232,113
2021 $62,527 $42,740 $105,267

Defendant Flores is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

-12 -
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25. Defendant Shelee M. T. Kimura (“Kimura”) has been Hawaiian
Electric Company’s President, CEO, and a director since January 2022. Defendant
Kimura was also Hawaiian Electric Company’s Senior Vice President, Customer
Service and Public Affairs from March 2021 to December 2021; Senior Vice
President, Customer Service from February 2019 to March 2021; Senior Vice
President, Business Development and Strategic Planning from January 2017 to
February 2019; and Vice President, Corporate Planning and Business Development
from May 2014 to January 2017. Defendant Kimura was also Hawaiian Electric’s
Director, Investor Relations, Strategic Planning & Budget from November 2009 to
May 2014, and also Manager, Corporate Finance and Investments from August 2004

to November 2009. The Company paid defendant Kimura the following

compensation:
Change in
Pension Value
and Total
Nonqualified Without
Non-Equity Deferred Change in

Stock Incentive Plan | Compensation | Pension
Year Salary Awards Compensation Earnings Value Total
2022 $450,000 $814,267 $249,909 - $1,514,176 | $1,514,176
2021 $292,000 $287,818 $215,919 $148,665 $795,737 $944,402

Defendant Kimura is a citizen of Hawai‘i.
26. Defendant Timothy E. Johns (“Johns”) has been Hawaiian Electric

Company’s Chairman of the Board since January 2020 and a director since 2005.

Defendant Johns has been the Chairman of Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit &

-13 -
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Risk Committee since 2010. Hawaiian Electric Company paid defendant Johns the

following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $135,750 $66,000 $201,750
2021 $129,000 $55,000 $184,000
2020 $120,603 $55,000 $175,603
2019 $61,671 $55,000 $116,671

Defendant Johns is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

27. Defendant James A. Ajello (“Ajello”) has been a Hawaiian Electric
Company director since at least May 2020. Defendant Ajello was also Hawaiian
Electric’s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) from June
2011 to April 2017; Treasurer from January 2009 to July 2013; and Senior Vice
President from January 2009 to June 2022. Defendant Ajello has been a member of
Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit & Risk Committee since May 2020. Hawaiian

Electric Company paid defendant Ajello the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $58,500 $66,000 $124,500
2021 $53,500 $55,000 $108,500
2020 $34,471 $55,000 $89,471

Defendant Ajello is a citizen of Texas.

28. Defendant Mary E. Kipp (“Kipp”) has been a Hawaiian Electric
Company director since January 2023. Defendant Kipp has been a member of
Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit & Risk Committee since January 2023.

Defendant Kipp is a citizen of Washington.

-14 -
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29. Defendant Alana Kobayashi Pakkala (“Pakkala”) has been a Hawaiian
Electric Company director since 2020. Defendant Pakkala has been a member of
Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit & Risk Committee since April 2022. Hawaiian

Electric Company paid defendant Pakkala the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $56,378 $66,000 $122,378
2021 $46,000 $55,000 $101,000
2020 $26,085 $55,000 $81,085

Defendant Pakkala is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

30. Defendant Toby B. Taniguchi (“Taniguchi”) has been a Hawaiian
Electric Company director since at least May 2021. Defendant Taniguchi has been
a member of Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit & Risk Committee since April

2022. Hawaiian Electric Company paid defendant Taniguchi the following

compensation:
Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $56,378 $66,000 $122,378
2021 $29,299 $55,000 $84,299

Defendant Taniguchi is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

31. Defendant Paul K. Ito (“Ito”) has been Hawaiian Electric Company’s
Senior Vice President, CFO, and Treasurer since October 2023. Defendant Ito was
also Hawaiian Electric’s Executive Vice President, and CFO from January 2023 to
October 2023; Treasurer from November 2019 to October 2023; Interim CFO from

July 2022 to December 2022; and Vice President — Tax and Controller from

- 15 -
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February 2018 to December 2022. Defendant Ito is named as a defendant in the
related Securities Class Action that alleges he violated sections 10(b) and 20(a) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company paid defendant Ito the following

compensation:
Total
Without
Non-Equity Change in
Stock Incentive Plan All Other Pension
Year Salary Bonus Awards | Compensation | Compensation Value Total
2022 | $313,425 | $108,750 | $244,373 $140,054 $9,150 $815,752 | $815,752

Defendant Ito is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

32. Defendant Jeffrey N. Watanabe (“Watanabe”) was Hawaiian Electric’s
Chairman of the Board from May 2006 to May 2020, and a director from 1987 to
May 2020. Defendant Watanabe was also a Hawaiian Electric Company director
from 2008 to 2011, and also from 1999 to 2006. The Company paid defendant

Watanabe the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2020 $112,500 - $112,500
2019 $331,978 $100,000 $431,978

Defendant Watanabe is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

33. Defendant Richard J. Dahl (“Dahl”) was a Hawaiian Electric director
from January 2017 to August 2023. Defendant Dahl was also a Hawaiian Electric
Company director from January 2017 to at least March 2019. Defendant Dahl was

a member of Hawaiian Electric’s Audit & Risk Committee from at least March 2019

- 16 -
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to at least March 2023, and also a member of Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit
& Risk Committee in at least March 2019. The Company paid defendant Dahl the

following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $121,500 $120,000 $241,500
2021 $111,000 $100,000 $211,000
2020 $103,066 $100,000 $203,066
2019 $94,128 $100,000 $194,128

Defendant Dahl is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

34. Defendant Yoko Otani (““Otani”’) was a Hawaiian Electric director from
January 2023 to August 2023. Defendant Otani was a member of Hawaiian
Electric’s Audit & Risk Committee from January 2023 to at least March 2023.
Defendant Otani is a citizen of New York.

35. Defendant Michael J. Kennedy (“Kennedy”) was a Hawaiian Electric
director from August 2022 to August 2023. The Company paid defendant Kennedy

the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $85,636 $91,068 $176,704

Defendant Kennedy is a citizen of California.

36. Defendant Keith P. Russell (“Russell”) was a Hawaiian Electric
director from May 2011 to May 2023. Defendant Russell was also a Hawaiian
Electric Company director from 2010 to at least March 2022. Defendant Russell

was a member of Hawaiian Electric’s Audit & Risk Committee from at least March

-17 -
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2019 to at least March 2023. The Company paid defendant Russell the following

compensation:
Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $132,000 $120,000 $252,000
2021 $120,000 $100,000 $220,000
2020 $118,000 $100,000 $218,000
2019 $112,500 $100,000 $212,500

Defendant Russell is a citizen of California.
37. Defendant Mary G. Powell (“Powell””) was a Hawaiian Electric director

from May 2019 to August 2021. The Company paid defendant Powell the following

compensation:
Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2021 $50,815 $100,000 $150,815
2020 $86,500 $100,000 $186,500
2019 $48,832 $100,000 $148,832

Defendant Powell is a citizen of California.
38. Defendant Eva T. Zlotnicka (“Zlotnicka”) was a Hawaiian Electric
director from February 2020 to May 2021. The Company paid defendant Zlotnicka

the following compensation:

Fiscal

Year Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2021 $32,225 - $32,225
2020 $75,192 $122,740 $197,932

Defendant Zlotnicka is a citizen of Arizona.

- 18 -




Case 1:24-cv-00164-MWJS-WRP Document 1 Filed 04/08/24 Page 19 of 90 PagelD.19

39. Defendant Kelvin H. Taketa (“Taketa”) was a Hawaiian Electric
director from 1993 to May 2019. Defendant Taketa was also a Hawaiian Electric
Company director from 2004 to at least May 2023. Hawaiian Electric Company

paid defendant Taketa the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $51,000 $66,000 $117,000
2021 $45,000 $55,000 $100,000
2020 $45,000 $55,000 $100,000
2019 $29,299 $55,000 $84,299

Defendant Taketa is a citizen of Hawai‘i.

40. Defendant Kevin M. Burke (“Burke”) was a Hawaiian Electric
Company director from at least May 2018 to at least February 2023. Defendant
Burke was a member of Hawaiian Electric Company’s Audit & Risk Committee
from May 2019 to at least March 2023. Hawaiian Electric Company paid defendant

Burke the following compensation:

Fiscal Year | Fees Paid in Cash | Stock Awards Total
2022 $59,500 $66,000 $125,500
2021 $53,500 $55,000 $108,500
2020 $53,500 $55,000 $108,500
2019 $49,883 $55,000 $104,883

Defendant Burke is a citizen of California.

41. Defendant Constance H. Lau (“Lau”) was Hawaiian Electric’s
President and CEO, and a director from May 2006 to January 2022, and also a
director from June 2001 to December 2004; Treasurer from April 1989 to October

1999; and assistant Treasurer from December 1987 to April 1989. Defendant Lau

-19 -
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was also Hawaiian Electric Company’s Chairman of the Board and a director from
May 2006 to May 2019; Treasurer from December 1987 to April 1989; and Assistant
Corporate Counsel from September 1984 to December 1987. Defendant Lau is
named as a defendant in the related Securities Class Action that alleges she violated
sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company paid

defendant Lau the following compensation:

Non-Equity Change in Total Without
Incentive Plan| Pension All Other Change in
Year Salary Stock Awards [Compensation Value Compensation | Pension Value Total
2021 $955,000 $3,204,098 $1,756,546 - $17,879 $5,933,523 $5,933,523
2020 $950,217 $2,378,882 $1,202,503 $576,610 - $4,531,602 $5,108,212
2019 $926,300 $2,344,943 $957,886 $660,533 $13,239 $4,242,368 $4,902,901

Defendant Lau is a citizen of Hawai‘1.

42.  Defendant Gregory C. Hazelton (“Hazelton”) was Hawaiian Electric’s
Executive Vice President and CFO from March 2018 to July 2022; Treasurer from
March 2018 to November 2019; Senior Vice President, Finance from October 2016
to April 2017; and Vice President, Finance, Treasurer and Controller from August
2013 to June 2015. Defendant Hazelton is named as a defendant in the related
Securities Class Action that alleges he violated sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company paid defendant Hazelton the

following compensation:
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Non-Equity Change in Total Without
Incentive Plan| Pension All Other Change in
Year Salary Stock Awards |Compensation Value Compensation | Pension Value Total
2022 $278,733 $757,904 $193,721 - $15,126 $1,245,484 $1,245,484
2021 $546,400 $1,100,746 $653,243 $116,175 $26,054 $2,326,443 $2,442,618
2020 $543,750 $707,755 $412,830 $186,825 $26,328 $1,690,663 $1,877,488
2019 $527,917 $693,866 $321,724 $184,099 $26,057 $1,569,564 $1,753,663

Defendant Hazelton is a citizen of Texas.

43. Defendant Tayne S. Y. Sekimura (“Sekimura”) was Hawaiian Electric
Company’s Senior Vice President and CFO from at least October 2009 to September
2023; Treasurer from at least November 2021 to September 2023; Senior Vice
President, Finance and Administration from at least February 2008 to at least August
2009; and Financial Vice President from at least October 2004 to at least February

2008. Hawaiian Electric Company paid defendant Sekimura the following

compensation:
Change in
Pension Value
and Total
Nonqualified Without
Non-Equity Deferred Change in

Stock Incentive Plan | Compensation | Pension
Year Salary Awards Compensation Earnings Value Total
2022 $397,500 $351,002 $161,923 - $910,425 $910,425
2021 $385,000 $403,546 $313,333 $317,962 $1,101,879 | $1,419,841
2020 $383,133 $326,050 $240,031 $857,936 $949,214 | $1,807,150
2019 $371,983 $319,518 $144,627 $755,908 $836,128 | $1,592,036

Defendant Sekimura is a citizen of Hawai ‘1.
44. The defendants identified in 18, 25, 31, 41-43 are referred to herein
as the “Officer Defendants.” The defendants identified in 18-30, 32-41 are

referred to herein as the “Director Defendants.” The defendants identified in 921-
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22, 24, 33-34, 36 are referred to herein as the “HEI Audit and Risk Committee
Defendants.” The defendants identified in /18-24, 32-39, 41 are referred to herein
as the “HEI Director Defendants.” The defendants identified in 918-20, 23, 25-30,
32-33, 36, 39-41 are referred to herein as the “HECO Director Defendants.”
Collectively, the defendants identified in 918-43 are referred to herein as the
“Individual Defendants.”

IV. DUTIES OF THE INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS
A.  Fiduciary Duties

45. By reason of their positions as officers and directors of the Company,
each of the Individual Defendants owed and owe Hawaiian Electric and its
shareholders fiduciary obligations of care and loyalty, and were and are required to
use their utmost ability to control and manage Hawaiian Electric in a fair, just,
honest, and equitable manner. The Individual Defendants were and are required to
act in furtherance of the best interests of Hawaiian Electric and not in furtherance of
their personal interest or benefit.

46. To discharge their duties, the officers and directors of Hawaiian Electric
were required to exercise reasonable and prudent supervision over the management,
policies, practices, and controls of the safety procedures of the Company. By virtue
of such duties, the officers and directors of Hawaiian Electric were required to,

among other things:
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a. ensure the Company had appropriate emergency plans in place if
a wildfire occurred;

b. ensure the Company’s operations were safe by taking proactive
measures, such as burying power lines and replacing power poles;

C. ensure the Company’s procedures for appropriately collecting
and preserving evidence of a wildfire scene;

d. conduct the affairs of the Company in an efficient, business-like
manner in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations so as to make
it possible to provide the highest quality performance of its business, to avoid
wasting the Company’s assets, and to maximize the value of the Company’s stock;
and

e. remain fully informed regarding the manner in which Hawaiian
Electric conducted its operations, and, upon receipt of notice or information of
imprudent or unsound conditions or practices, make reasonable inquiry in
connection therewith, and take steps to correct such conditions or practices and make
such disclosures as necessary to comply with applicable laws.

B. Breaches of Duties

47. The conduct of the Individual Defendants complained of herein
involves a knowing and culpable violation of their obligations as officers and

directors of Hawaiian Electric, the absence of good faith on their part, and a reckless
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disregard for their duties to the Company that the Individual Defendants were aware
or reckless in not being aware posed a risk of serious injury to the Company.

48.  The Individual Defendants breached their duty of loyalty by allowing
defendants to cause, or by themselves causing, the Company to make materially false
and misleading statements and engage in unsafe operations, improper practices that
wasted and continue to waste the Company’s assets, and caused and continue to
cause Hawaiian Electric to incur substantial damage.

49.  The Individual Defendants, because of their positions of control and
authority as officers and directors of Hawaiian Electric, were able to and did, directly
or indirectly, exercise control over the wrongful acts complained of herein. The
Individual Defendants also failed to prevent the other Individual Defendants from
taking such illegal actions. As a result, and in addition to the damage the Company
has already incurred, Hawaiian Electric has expended, and will continue to expend,
significant sums of money.

C. Additional Duties of the HEI Audit and Risk Committee
Defendants

50. In addition to these duties, under its Charter in effect since November
4, 2021, the HEI Audit and Risk Committee Defendants owe and owed specific
duties to Hawaiian Electric to assist the Board in overseeing the Company’s material
risks, including severe weather events, and mitigations to those risks, such as safety

plans and procedures when a severe weather event occurs and the proper
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maintenance of power poles.> Moreover the HEI Audit and Risk Committee’s
Charter provides that the HEI Audit and Risk Committee oversee: (i) the integrity of
the Company’s financial statements; (ii) the Company’s compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (iii) risk management and compliance systems and
structure; and (iv) the internal audit function.

51.  Specifically, the HEI Audit and Risk Committee is required to review
the Company’s financial statements. In particular, the Charter states:

Review with management and the independent auditor (a) major issues
regarding accounting principles and financial statement
presentations, including significant accounting policies, any changes
in the Company’s selection or application of accounting principles and
audit conclusions regarding significant accounting estimates, (b)
analyses prepared by management and/or the independent auditor
setting forth significant financial reporting issues and judgments made
in connection with the preparation of the Company’s consolidated
financial statements, including analyses of the effects of alternative
GAAP methods on the consolidated financial statements, (c) any
critical audit matters arising from the current audit period, (d) the effect
of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as well as off-balance sheet
structures, on the Company’s consolidated financial statements, and (¢)
periodic reports from the independent auditor, the internal auditor and
management on significant accounting or financial reporting
developments in order to assess their impact on the Company.

52.  Regarding risk management, the Charter states that the HEI Audit and
Risk Committee is required to:

1. Oversee the enterprise risk management program of the Company,
including by (a) reviewing and discussing the Company’s major

2 The HEI Audit and Risk Committee Charter was amended after the wildfires on
November 8, 2023.
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financial risk exposures and the steps management has taken to
monitor and control such exposures, (b) discussing policies with
respect to risk assessment and risk management, including the
guidelines and policies governing the process by which risk
assessment and risk management is undertaken, and (c) periodically
reporting to the Board the Committee’s discussion and findings
regarding risk oversight so the entire Board can be responsive to
changes in the Company’s risk profile.

2. Periodically review the Company’s code of conduct (the “Code”) and

oversee the Company’s program and procedures to monitor compliance

with the Code, including meeting with the Compliance Officer to

discuss potential Code violations that have been reported and the results

of the Code compliance program and recommending to the Board

proposed revisions to the Code.

53.  The HEI Audit and Risk Committee was authorized to “conduct or
authorize investigations into or studies of matters within the Committee’s scope of
responsibilities.” Despite these responsibilities, the HEI Audit and Risk Committee
Defendants failed to prevent the Company from issuing false and misleading
statements and failed to ensure that the Company was creating adequate risk

mitigation plans for wildfires.

V.  CONSPIRACY, AIDING AND ABETTING, AND CONCERTED
ACTION

54. In committing the wrongful acts alleged herein, the Individual
Defendants have pursued, or joined in the pursuit of, a common course of conduct,
and have acted in concert with and conspired with one another in furtherance of their

common plan or design. In addition to the wrongful conduct herein alleged as giving
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rise to primary liability, the Individual Defendants further aided and abetted or
assisted each other in breaching their respective duties.

55.  During all times relevant hereto, the Individual Defendants, collectively
and individually, initiated a course of conduct that was designed to and did: (i)
deceive the investing public, including shareholders of Hawaiian Electric, regarding
the Individual Defendants’ management of Hawaiian Electric’s operations,
specifically regarding the adequacy of the Company’s equipment and safety
protocols; and (ii) enhance the Individual Defendants’ executive and directorial
positions at Hawaiian Electric and the profits, power, and prestige that the Individual
Defendants enjoyed as a result of holding these positions. In furtherance of this plan,
conspiracy, and course of conduct, the Individual Defendants, collectively and
individually, took the actions set forth herein.

56. The purpose and effect of the Individual Defendants’ conspiracy,
common enterprise, or common course of conduct was, among other things, to
conceal the Individual Defendants’ violations of law, breaches of fiduciary duty,
waste of corporate assets, and unjust enrichment; and to conceal adverse information
concerning the Company’s inadequate equipment and safety protocols.

57. The Individual Defendants accomplished their conspiracy, common
enterprise, or common course of conduct by causing the Company to fail,

purposefully or recklessly, to invest in appropriate equipment repairs and implement
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safety protocols in case of a severe weather event and make materially false and
misleading statements concerning the Company’s preparedness during a severe
weather event. Because the actions described herein occurred under the authority of
the Board, each of the Individual Defendants was a direct, necessary, and substantial
participant in the conspiracy, common enterprise, or common course of conduct
complained of herein.

58. Each of the Individual Defendants aided and abetted and rendered
substantial assistance in the wrongs complained of herein. In taking such actions to
substantially assist the commission of the wrongdoing complained of herein, each
Individual Defendant acted with knowledge of the primary wrongdoing,
substantially assisted in the accomplishment of that wrongdoing, and was aware of

his or her overall contribution to and furtherance of the wrongdoing.

V1. THE INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS FAIL TO OVERSEE THE
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS

A. Hawaiian Electric’s Duties as an Electric Utility

59. Hawaiian Electric holds itself out to shareholders and investors as
striving to “be one of the most progressive and highest performing companies in the
world, serving the energy needs of each person in Hawaii with purpose, compassion,
empathy, and aloha for our fellow humans and our natural environment.”

60. As a utility service with a virtual monopoly in Hawai‘i, Hawaiian

Electric is subject to oversight from both federal and state regulators, including by
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the Hawai‘i Public Utilities Commission (“PUC”). Pursuant to section 8.2 of its
General Order No. 7, the PUC requires that Hawaiian Electric “exercise reasonable
care to reduce the hazards to which its employees, its customers, and the general
public may be subjected.” Further, section 8.3 of its General Order No. 7 states that
Hawaiian Electric “shall adopt and execute a safety program fitted to the size and
type of its operations.” A failure to conform to or comply with this requirement
“shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $25,000 for each day such violation,
neglect, or failure continues.” Hawai‘i Revised Statute (“HRS”) § 269-28(a).
Compliance with the PUC’s order is imperative for Hawaiian Electric because
failure to do so could lead to significant financial penalties.

61. Hawaiian Electric had a duty to properly maintain and repair the electric
transmission lines, and other equipment, including utility poles associated with their
transmission of electricity, and to keep vegetation properly trimmed and maintained
so as to prevent contact with overhead power lines and other electric equipment.
Hawaiian Electric also had an obligation to comply with statutes, regulations, and
standards, specifically, including, but not limited to, HRS § 269-6, HRS § 269-27.6,
Hawai‘t Administrative Rule (“HAR”) Chapter 6-73 “Installation, Operation, and
Maintenance of Overhead and Underground Electrical Supply and Communication
Lines” (adopted 2007), Hawai‘i PUC, General Order No. 7, National Electrical

Code, NFPA No. 70 (2008), National Electrical Safety Code, American National
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Standard Code for Electric Meters, ANSI C12, and American Standard
Requirements, Terminology, and Test Code for Instrument Transformers, ASA
C57.13. These requirements and obligations were particularly important given the
known high risk of fire in Maui in general.

62. The electric power generation and transmission industry faces inherent
hazards because electrical transmission and distribution (“T&D”’) components are
exposed to extreme weather events, including high winds and wildfires.> Thus, it is
essential that the Company’s T&D components are maintained properly for safety
of lives and property.* Failure to do so can increase the risk that a weather event
causes a fire, leading to catastrophic harm as it did on Maui.

63. The Individual Defendants also knew that the Company must follow
various standards to protect the public from the consequences that follow from
vegetation coming into contact with its T&D components, pursuant to HAR § 6-73-
11. Accordingly, the Company was required to maintain the areas surrounding and
adjacent to certain of its T&D components and ensure sufficient clearance around

its power lines. In addition, HAR § 6-73-14 provides that any maintenance issues

3 T&D components include the transmission lines, substations, distribution lines, and
transformers.

4 See U.S. Department of Energy, Quadrennial Technology Review 2015,
Transmission and Distribution Components (2015), https://www.energy.gov/sites/
prod/files/2015/09/26/ QTR2015-3F-Transmission-and-Distribution 1.pdf.
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not specifically addressed by HAR § 6-73-11 “should be done in accordance with
accepted good practice for the given local conditions known at the time by those
responsible for the construction or maintenance.” Despite being under an obligation
to conform to these minimum safety standards, the Individual Defendants failed to
cause the Company to comply with those standards thus placing the public at a
heightened risk of wildfires caused by the Company’s T&D components.

B. The Individual Defendants Knew About the Significant Wildfire

Risk Created by the Combination of Hawai‘i’s Severe Weather
Events and Old Power Lines

64. Every year, multiple brush fires break out across Maui, burning dozens,
hundreds, or thousands of acres at a time, as well as, homes, businesses, and personal
property. It is impossible to live, work, or own land on Maui without knowing that
serious brush fires occur every year and that these fires spread rapidly in Maui’s dry,
non-native grasses.

65. Since 2000, more than twenty hurricanes or their remnants have
impacted or nearly impacted Hawai‘i, thirteen of which have occurred since 2010.
More recently, dozens of hurricanes or tropical storms made landfall or passed
within miles of Hawai‘i’s shores.

66. In 2014, the Hawai‘i Wildfire Management Organization (“HWMO”)

issued a 2014 wildfire mitigation plan that warned Lahaina that it was among Maui’s
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most fire-prone areas. The HWMO outlined a plan for working with utilities to help
reduce the risk of fires.’

67. Since at least 2018, activists and experts have been sounding the alarm
about the fire risk associated with non-native, invasive, and highly flammable
grasses, describing the land around Lahaina as a “vast swath of vegetated fuels.”

68. In 2018, and the years following, the HWMO continued to identify
Lahaina as a hotspot for potential wildfires due to the area’s dry, windy, and hot
characteristics.

69. In 2020, Lahaina was identified as a high risk wildfire area in the Maui
County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update.” The Maui County Hazard Mitigation Plan
Update also warned that the western portion of Maui has a “Highly Like (greater
than 90% annual chance)” probability of experiencing wildfires.

70.  In July 2021, Maui County’s Cost of Government Commission

(“Commission”) issued a Report on Wildfire Prevention and Cost Recovery on Maui

> Dan Frosch & Jim Carlton, Hawaii Officials Were Warned Years Ago that Maui's
Lahaina Faced High Wildfire Risk, Wall St. J. (Aug. 12, 2023),
https://www.wsj.com/us-news/climate-environment/hawaii-maui-fire-risks-plans-
government-e883{3a3.

6 Imogen Piper, et al., Maui's Neglected Grasslands Caused Lahaina Fire to Grow
with Deadly Speed, Wash. Post (Sept. 2, 2023), https://www.washingtonpost.com
/investigations/interactive/2023/lahaina-wildfires-invasive-grass-destruction/.

7 County of Maui, Hawai‘i, Maui Emergency Management Agency, Hazard
Mitigation Plan Update, at 489, 503 (August 2020), https://www.mauicounty.gov
/DocumentCenter/View/125977/2020-Maui-County-Hazard-Mitigation-Plan-Final.
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(“Wildfire Prevention Report”).® The Commission’s Wildfire Prevention Report
specifically warned about threats that wildfires posed to Hawai‘i, and specifically to
Maui, stating:’

e “[Tlhe number of incidents from a combination of
wild/brush/forest fires appears to be increasing, and that this
increase poses an increased threat to citizens, properties, and
sacred sites”;

o “Island communities are particularly vulnerable because
populations tend to be clustered and dependent on single
highways, often located on the island edge”;

e “Escape routes and evacuation locations and resources for

populations impacted by fire incidents are also impeded by fire
Incursions’’;

e “Importantly, Hawaii’s and Maui’s fire problem is more extreme
than on the U.S. mainland”; and

e “As of June 22, 2021, the U.S. Drought Monitor designated all
of Maui Island as either in a ‘moderate drought’ or ‘severe
drought.’*
71.  The Wildfire Prevention Report also included data showing that fires

will continue increasing in frequency and severity; exhibits depicting which Maui

8 County of Maui, Hawai‘i, Cost of Government Commission, Report on Wildfire
Prevention and Cost Recovery on Maui (July 2021),
https://www.mauicounty.gov/DocumentCenter/View /129493/Report-on-Wildfire-
Prevention--Cost-Recovery-on-Maui---Part-1-Report--Exhibits-A-B-33-MB.

1d.

-33-



Case 1:24-cv-00164-MWJS-WRP Document 1 Filed 04/08/24 Page 34 of 90 PagelD.34

communities were the most vulnerable to wildfires (including Lahaina); and the
activities that increase wildfire risk (such as power lines).!°

72.  The Wildfire Prevention Report explained that “[a]boveground power
lines that fail, short, or are low hanging can cause fire ignition (sparks) that could
start a wildfire, particularly in windy or stormy conditions,” which is “exacerbated
by overgrown areas in the rights of way beneath the lines.” The Wildfire Prevention
Report also identified responsive action to the problems posed by power lines, which
included routine inspections of “power transmission lines and rights of way” and
tasked the “electric utility companies with corrective actions,” like “infrastructure
upgrades” and fuel reduction.!!

73. The Individual Defendants had specific knowledge of the risk of
wildfires on Maui because Hawaiian Electric submitted a 2022 request for funding
from the PUC to offset the $189.7 million Hawaiian Electric would need to spend to

bolster its power grid statewide, which included wildfire-prevention measures.'?

10 Hawaii Wildfire Management Association, A Collaborative Landscape-Level
Approach to Reduce Wildfire Hazard Across Hawaii: 2018—2019 Vegetation
Management — Rapid Mapping Assessment and Collaborative Action Planning —
Maui Report, at 2, 7-8 (July 2021), https://www.mauicounty.gov/DocumentCenter
/View/129491/Report-on-Wildfire-Prevention--Cost-Recovery-on-Maui---Part-4-
Exhibit-D-25-MB.

' County of Maui, Hawai‘i, Cost of Government Commission, supra note 8, at 11-
12.

12 Dan Frosch & Jim Carlton, supra note 5.
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Indeed, Hawaiian Electric indicated in its funding request that “[t]he risk of a utility
system causing a wildfire ignition is significant” and that Hawaiian Electric sought
funding, in part, to guard against their facilities being “the origin or contributing
source of ignition for a wildfire.”!3

74.  FEMA’s April 2023 Wind Retrofit Guide for Residential Buildings in
Hurricane-Prone Regions designates the entire state of Hawai‘i as a hurricane-prone
region at risk of high winds.

75. In a submission from Hawaiian Electric to the PUC, Hawaiian Electric
recognized that “the risk of a utility system causing a wildfire ignition is
significant.”'* The Company also told the regulator that it had “reviewed the San
Diego Gas and Electric, Southern California Edison, and Pacific Gas & Electric
mandated wildfire mitigation plans to identify best practices that would be

appropriate for Hawai‘i’s environment and weather conditions.”"® The Company

stated that it “performed assessments of potential wildfire areas on O‘ahu, Maui,

13 Brianna Sacks, Hawaii Utility Faces Scrutiny for Not Cutting Power to Reduce
Fire Risks, Wash. Post, (Aug. 12, 2023), https://www.washingtonpost.com/
climateenvironment/2023/08/12/maui-fire-electric-utility/?utm_campaign=wp
_post_most&utm medium=email &utm_source=newsletter&wpisrc=nl_most.

4 In the Matter of Hawaiian Electric Company, Inc., et al., Settlement Application
at 23 (Haw. PUC June 30, 2022), https://www.hawaiianelectric.com/
documents/about us/our vision_and commitment/resilience/20220630
resilience EPRM _application.pdf.

5.
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Lana‘i, Moloka‘i, and Hawai‘i Island.”'® Hawaiian Electric also advised Hawai‘i
regulators that its Wildfire Prevention & Mitigation initiative has the following
objectives:

1. Minimize the probability of the Companies’ facilities becoming the

origin or contributing source of ignition for a wildfire;

2. Prevent the Companies’ facilities from contributing to the severity or

breadth of wildfires; [and]

3. Identify and implement operational procedures to ensure the

Companies can respond effectively to a wildfire without compromising

customer and employee safety, while remaining sensitive to customers’

need for reliable electricity.!’

76. Moreover, the Individual Defendants knew that there were previous
fires caused by other electrical utility companies across the country, including
Pacific, Gas & Electric Company (“PG&E”) in California, PacifiCorp in Oregon,
and Southern California Edison Company (“SoCal Edison”) in California.

77. As aresult, the Individual Defendants were well aware of the wildfire

risks that power lines created in the wildfire prone region of Lahaina.

C. Hawaiian Electric Caused a Fire in 2018 by Not De-Energizing
Power Lines

78.  The Company had previously caused a wildfire because it failed to de-
energize power lines. In August 2018, winds from Hurricane Lane blew down a

Hawaiian Electric power line, which ignited a fire that raged in the Kaua‘ula Valley

1614
.
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in West Maui, uphill from Lahaina. That fire tore through fallow agricultural land
near the same type of fallow agricultural land that fueled the Lahaina Fire. The
Hurricane Lane fires burned 21 houses, 27 cars, and more than 2,100 acres; displaced
a few dozen people; and caused more than $4.3 million in damage.'8

79.  Just days after the Hurricane Lane fires, Maui residents raised many
concerns with the then mayor of Maui and state and county officials at a public
meeting: “Why didn’t Maui Electric shut off the power given the high winds and
their equipment having caused other fires? Why didn’t emergency staff sound their
all-hazard sirens?” These questions raise the very same problems that led to and
worsened the Lahaina Fire and its attendant impacts. "

80. At the very same 2018 meeting, residents asked state and county
officials, “If the winds exceed a certain amount, is Maui Electric required to shut
down?” “Those wires are whipping up there. And that was the cause of the fire.”
Officials responded, “That was not a conversation that was had” and confirmed
MECO did not have a protocol in place to shut down power in advance of high

winds.

18 Brianna Sacks & Justine McDaniel, 4 Terrifying Fire Struck Maui in 2018.
Officials Were Warned of a Repeat, Wash. Post (Aug. 22, 2023), https://www.
washingtonpost.com/weather /2023/08/22/maui-fire-2018-lahaina-warning/.

¥ rd.
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81. In 202